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	“The spirit is there in every boy; it has to be discovered and brought to light” 
Lord Robert Baden-Powell


	


	?
	We are seeking :

· The Christian names of the Reverend HF Shepherd.

· Further information regarding the Reverend Shepherd, Frank Harris, Vic Wood, Gussy Ward & Dennis Copper.

· A photo of Frank Harris.

· The names of the 35 Scouts who joined the Troop in 1919.

· A copy of the Troop’s initial registration with the Local Association on 15 August 1919.

· A copy of the Troop’s initial registration with Imperial Headquarters on 1 October 1919.
· The date on which the Pathfinders Troop was first registered.

· Did the Reverend Gilling-Lax establish a “Social Club for all” ?

· What were the names of the other two Patrols – and who was the 4th Patrol Leader ?

· Did our Scouts help during the railway strike in October 1919 ?

· Further events that occurred this year.

· Copies of the St Paul’s Parish Church Parish Magazine for this year.

· Copies of the Kent & Sussex Courier for this year.

· Any knowledge that you may have of this year.


Can you help ? Please click HERE if you can.
The revival of Scouting in Rusthall

Researchers’ note – To date we have been unable to establish what happened to the Scouts during 1917 and 1918.  There seems to have been no formal leadership from the Church but this is not to say that individuals or a lone patrol did not carry on Scouting during this period. Hopefully our future examination of Parish records will clarify this. However, it is evident that from early-mid 1919 St Paul’s Rusthall was once again keen to put Scouting on a formal footing.

“Welcome to Rusthall, Reverend Shepherd”

From The Courier - 9 May 1919

The Rev. H.F. Shepherd, who has been Curate of Heathfield, and has also served as an Army Chaplain in France, has been appointed Curate of St Paul’s Rusthall and will co-operate with the new Vicar Rev. T.G. Gilling Lax who commenced his ministrations on Sunday last.
The new Clergy of Rusthall were very keen to foster the youth of the village 
The Reverend Gilling-Lax writes to The Courier

From The Courier – 8 August 1919

‘I wish very much to see both the Boy Scouts and Girl Guides revived.  For the former, Mr Shepherd has already been making preparation, and we hope to make a start soon. I should also like to see a Social Club established where all might meet on common ground for recreation and social intercourse, especially the younger members of both sexes. I should be glad to receive suggestions and offers of help from any who are in sympathy with this project.’
Researchers’ note – Did St Paul’s manage to establish a “Social Club for all” ? If so, was it located in the Coffee House, Denny Bottom – which, on 14 October 1967, became our Scout Headquarters ? The Parish archives contain a large box of correspondence relating to the building which we have yet to examine.
The Formation of our Present Group
August 1919

	
	In 1919, the Reverend HF Shepherd spread the word that he was to reform the Troop. Keen interest from the thriving St Paul’s choir resulted in sufficient boys congregating at the Scout Hut in the grounds of the then Girls’ School for the formation of four patrols – two of which were named “Lion” and “Bulldog”. Patrol Leaders were selected, three of whom were Bill Wood, Bill and Arthur Walsh.
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	In the very early days of the Scout Movement, it was the responsibility of Local Committees and District Secretaries to keep records of all Troop (and later Cub Pack) registrations – but it was not until October 1919 that these details started to be recorded at Imperial Headquarters in London.


The Troop was initially registered with the Local Association on 15 August 1919, and by Imperial Headquarters on 1 October of the same year. Our Troop was allocated registration number 1820, and recorded as “Controlled by the Vicar of St Paul’s, Rusthall, and Church Officials, with Headquarters in the Mission Room, Rusthall”. The Reverend Shepherd, of 3 Rusthall Common, was the first Scoutmaster.

“Pipped to the post” by the Pathfinders Troop, we are known as the 2nd Royal Tunbridge Wells – but our existence prior to the need to register leads to our long-standing claim that we are historically the first – a claim that has yet to be proven incorrect !

Despite the absence of an active Troop during the First World War, the village’s interest in Scouting was maintained – Rusthall had been awaiting the initiative of the Reverend Shepherd. 

It was, therefore, only a short time before the reformed Troop was again in full swing – when the once familiar marching band was again seen and heard on the streets of our village and further afield – their already admired performance being further improved by the expertise of Mr Tom Taylor, an Army band sergeant (possibly of the West Kent Regiment), who volunteered to teach the Scouts.

Week-long camps were soon being held as far afield as Worthing – and the trek cart became a common sight, en route to regular weekend patrol camps on Broadwater Forest.

Under the able leadership of the Reverend Shepherd, the Troop steadily grew in strength and it was not long before he was supported by a team of Assistant Scoutmasters. Although the relevant documentary evidence has yet to be located and examined, we understand that these included Frank Harris, Vic Wood, Gussy Ward and Dennis Copper.
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Scouts acquire their own hut 
in the grounds of the Girls’ School
Autumn 1919
The VAD Hospital, Rusthall was closed after the cessation of hostilities in 1919.  
The huts and equipment were sold off and the proceeds distributed to various hospitals, nursing and first aid organisations.  However, one hut was retained as a Scout Hut.  
The disposal of the hospital buildings and equipment took some time and the VAD Hospital was not formally wound up until June 1922.  A report of the winding up, which appeared in the Courier of 30th June 1922, states that: ‘Owing to Mr and Mrs Yates having allowed the Committee to earmark their donation of £400 to the building fund of the huts to secure one for the Boy Scouts when the Hospital was closed in the Autumn of 1919, the present Scout Hut had been handed over to the Vicar of Rusthall for the use of the Scout.’  
Mr and Mrs F C Yates lived at Rusthall Place and were regular contributors of gifts to the VAD Hospital and were active members of St Paul’s Church Rusthall. although no Scouting connection has yet been established.
A Railway Strike

October 1919

A brief mention is made in the Courier of a railway strike – during which an appeal was made by Sir Samuel Waring for Scout ‘Officers’ in the County of Kent to assist in the distribution of food.  Apparently there was an immediate response and the county was ‘greatly indebted to the Boy Scouts and their organisation’.

The Troop is thriving

December 1919
The Troop is thriving and, according to a short note in Rusthall News in the Courier of 19 December, numbers have increased to 35.  
It was also reported that Mr Victor F Wood had recently joined the Troop as Assistant Scoutmaster.  He was regarded as an important asset to the Troop as he had invaluable Army experience and was an expert signaller and instructor.

Speldhurst 1 – Rusthall 2

Saturday 13 December 1919
The same edition of The Courier records that a ‘football team representing Rusthall Troop paid a visit to Speldhurst on Saturday, and an even game resulted.  
Rusthall soon pressed forward, and from a pass by Diplock, Crampton scored from close quarters.  A second goal was added by Howard from a penalty before half-time. 
In the second half the play slackened somewhat, but towards the end Speldhurst attacked vigorously and scored. 
Time was signalled without further goals and Rusthall finished winners by 2-1.’
Scout & Guide collaboration

The Inter-War Years – 1919 to 1938

During the period between the two World Wars, cooperation between the Scout and Guide organisations became more acceptable and tended to extend beyond church parades, fundraising, social gatherings and parties to hikes and even camps.  
Tammy M Proctors’ book ‘On My Honour: Guides and Scouts in Interwar Britain (American Philosophical Society, Philadelphia, 2002) describes cooperation between Scouts and Guides as a means of providing extra security especially for Guides.  
The book includes the following observations from Miss Margaret McMillan, a Guide Leader for many years in Rusthall, and given in an oral history interview in 1993. She said that Guide camps are magnets for boys and she therefore took a patrol of hand-picked Scouts with her each year to camp to protect the Guides from such outside attacks – a practice that continued at least until the mid- 1960s.  As well as providing the ‘protection’ particularly when Guides were away from the site, the Scouts assisted in pitching tents and acted as occasional instructors in such things as camp craft, pioneering, and map reading.  
Scout Movement Milestones - 1919
	July
	Gilwell Park opened.

	
	

	September
	First Training Course at Gilwell.


Click HERE if you have any further information regarding this year
or

HERE to return to our Navigation page
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